ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 4, 2003
3:19 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Represent ati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 155

"An Act relating to the subm ssion of payroll information by
contractors and subcontractors performng work on a public
construction contract; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 155(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BILL NO 162
"An Act increasing the fee for a state business |icense; and
providing for an effective date."”
- MOVED CSHB 162(L&C) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

BILL: HB 155
SHORT TI TLE: PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON PROJECT REQUI REMENTS
SPONSCR(S): RLS BY REQUEST CF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H L&C, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H) FN1: (LWF)

03/ 05/ 03 0423 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 14/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 4, 2003



03/ 14/ 03 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 03 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 04/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17
BILL: HB 162

SHORT TI TLE: | NCREASE BUSI NESS LI CENSE FEE
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

03/ 05/ 03 0432 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 05/ 03 0432 (H) L&C, FIN

03/ 05/ 03 0433 (H FN1: ( CED)

03/ 05/ 03 0433 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

03/ 12/ 03 (H) L&C AT 4:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/12/03 (H Heard & Hel d

03/12/03 (H M NUTE( L&C)

03/ 28/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 28/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed to
04/ 04/ 03

04/ 04/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

DI CK CATTANACH, Executive Director

Associ ated General Contractors

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Ofered five suggested changes to the
proposed conm ttee substitute (CS) for HB 155.

GREG O CLARAY, Comm ssi oner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the proposed CS to HB 155 and
coment ed on suggestions offered by other w tnesses.

RON TRUI NI

| ronwor kers Local 751

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Suggested several revisions to the proposed
CSHB 155.

VI NCE BELTRAM

| BEW Local 1547

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Asked whet her payroll reports will continue
to be sent to the departnent under the proposed CSHB 155;

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 4, 2003



expressed concern that new user fees wll not be dedicated to
enforcenment of the prevailing wage program

CHRI S TUCK

| BEW Local 1547

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Supported proposed revisions in the
proposed CSHB 155 regarding contractors, subcontractors, and
enpl oyers.

CHUCK W EGERS

ABC [ Associ ated Builders and Contractors] Al aska

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on the proposed CSHB 155, noting
that current law still gives the departnent the teeth to enforce
the prevailing wage | aws.

JOHN BROWN, President,

Fai r banks Central Labor Counci

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During his testinony on the proposed CSHB
155, stressed the inportance of user fees flowing back to the
departnent to support enforcenent activities.

NANCY PETERSON

City of Val dez

Val dez, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the changes in the proposed CSHB
155, particularly retaining the departnent as the collection
point for the certified payroll reports.

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyi st

for Alaska State AFL-CI O

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on the proposed CSHB 155,
supporting the sending of payroll reports to the departnent and
urging the dedication of wuser fees to support enforcenent
activities.

PAULA SCAVERA, Special Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: During testinony on the proposed CSHB 155,
expl ai ned how a departnent "form' can be paper or el ectronic.

RI CK URI ON, Director

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 4, 2003



D vi sion of Cccupational Licensing

Department of Comrunity & Econom c¢ Devel opnent ( DCED)
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions on HB 162.

DON JOHNSQN, Fishing Charter Operator
Kenai, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed concerns with HB 162.

JOSH APPLEBEE, St aff

to Representative Tom Anderson

House Labor and Commrerce Standing Committee

Al aska State Legislature

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Provided information with regard to fee
changes under HB 162.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-28, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:19 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Lynn, Dahlstrom Gatto, and Crawford were present at
the call to order. Representative Quttenberg arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

HB 155- PUBLI C CONSTRUCTI ON PROJECT REQUI REMENTS

Number 0060

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 155, "An Act relating to the subm ssion of
payroll information by contractors and subcontractors performng
work on a public construction contract; and providing for an
effective date.”

Nunmber 0083

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 155, Version 23-GH1119\D, Craver, 4/3/03,
as the working docunent. There being no objection, Version D
was before the commttee.

CHAIR ANDERSON noted that this CS resolves many of the issues

raised during testinony at the earlier hearing. Section 1 was
revised so that submi ssion of certified payroll reports is every

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 4, 2003



two weeks instead of weekly, and it renoves the requirenment to
submt the reports to the contracting agenci es.

CHAI R ANDERSON noted that Section 2 of the CS states that the
general contractor will pay all fees for the entire project at
the beginning of the project -- the contractor's fee plus a fee
for each subcontractor. The second part of Section 2 creates a
sliding scale for the fee based on the contract anounts as
fol |l ows: under $5,000 - no fee; $5,000 to $10,000 - $100 fee;
$10,000 to $50,000 - $150 fee; $50,000 to $500,000 - $200 fee

$500,000 to $1 mllion - $250 fee; and $1 million and up - $300

f ee. The maximum fee to be paid by the contractor would be
$5,000. He noted that Sections 3 and 4 of the CS are unchanged
from the original bill. Section 5 directs the Departnent of

Labor & Wrkforce Developnent to conputerize the subm ssion
process for certified payroll reports.

Number 0250

CHAI R ANDERSON descri bed Conceptual Amendnent 1, which read as
fol | ows:

1. Need exenption for energencies (such as the w nd disaster
in Anchorage) to allow work to begin and then file notice
of intent to pay prevailing wage.

2. Carify that jobs under $5,000 are exenpt from the fee but
not from filing notice of intent and an affidavit of
conpl i ance.

3. Make | anguage consistent (e.g. the terns "contractor" and
"subcontractor” need to be used consistently instead of

"enpl oyer").
Nunber 0319

CHAI R ANDERSON noved to adopt Conceptual Anmendnent 1. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

The conmittee took an at-ease from3:25 to 3:27 p. m
Nunber 0497
Dl CK CATTANACH, Executive Di rector, Associ at ed Gener a

Contractors (AGC), Anchorage, noted that construction is a cost-
pass-through industry, so the AGC can support the concept of

[the fees in] this bill. He said that the costs woul d be passed
on to the wultimte owners, in this case, the state, the
municipality, and the various political subdivisions. He said

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 4, 2003



he will suggest ways to make CSHB 155 work better. In Section
1, which requires the submission of certified payroll reports
every second Friday, a conpany with nunerous jobs could end up
reporting every week. He suggested reporting all previously
unreported payroll on the second and fourth Fridays, then every
contractor would be reporting consistently on the sane Friday.
This woul d hel p reduce paperwork, he said.

Nunmber 0578

MR.  CATTANACH recommended in Section 2 that the m ninmm
[threshold for contracts for purposes of calculating fees] be
changed from $5,000 to at |east $25, 000. He al so recommended
that the fee be a percentage of the contract amount, up to the
maxi mum of $5, 000. For exanple, a contract between $50,000 and
$500, 000 would result in a fee between $500 and $5, 000 per job.
This avoids burdening the contractor with additional accounting
just to figure out how nmuch he has to pay.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked how it was a burden to add up the tota
anounts of a job.

Number 0660

MR. CATTANACH replied that depending on the size of the job,
gener al contractors have from five to fifteen specialty
contractors working under them he would have to aggregate those
subcontracts to see how much he would have to pay. He suggested
its sinpler to take a percentage on the general contractor's
total rather than the general contractor's job plus the

associ ated subcontractors. He suggesting taking a sinple one
percent if the goal of this section of the bill is to raise
noney.

MR. CATTANACH pointed out problems wth Section 2, subsection
(c), on page 3, lines 3-7, which appears to hold up the final
paynent if one subcontractor has not signed the required
affidavit of conpliance. He said that this holds hostage all
the good subcontractors who have signed the affidavit and
followed the |aw The provision puts enforcenent on the
contractor and that's not where it belongs, he said. He asked
that this subsection be deleted or reconsidered.

MR. CATTANACH questioned the purpose of Section 4, page 3,
starting on line 18 [which states that contractors starting work
before the July 1, 2003, effective date] nust file a notice of
intent but no fee. He said he didn't see what the state gains

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 4, 2003



with this section. Rat her, he suggested |eaving existing

contracts out of the bill, and making the bill apply to all new
contracts issued on or before July 1, 2003, and making it a part
of the required contract | anguage. He suggested allow ng for

el ectronic reporting to the extent possible.
Number 0899

MR. CATTANACH, at the request of Chair Anderson, restated his
five suggested changes to the CS. 1) In Section 1, file reports
the second and fourth Friday of the nonth for all payroll that
has been incurred since the last reporting period, rather than
every two weeks. 2A) In Section 2, change the m nimum contract
size from $5,000 to $50,000. 2B) For contracts from $50,000 to
$500, 000, calculate a sinple fee of 1 percent calculated on the
general contractor's contract. 3) Delete Section 2, subsection
(c) because it allows one subcontractor who doesn't sign an
affidavit to hold up paynents to all other subcontractors. 4)
Del ete Section 4 because it requires a notice of intent from an
ongoi ng project. 5) Expand the concept of electronic filing of
certified payroll reports and allow those to be filed wth the
af fidavits.

Nunmber 1083

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD noted his agreenent with M. Cattanach's
poi nt s. He said, however, that HB 155 is a snoke and mrrors
way of raising revenue; all it does is add to the cost of public
construction, which wll be paid by the public entity that
contracts to build a school or a road. This noney won't flow to
the Departnent of Labor & Workforce Devel opnent; it's not a fee
to help fund their prograns. If it's a tax, he suggested
calling it a tax. He said he doesn't agree with the prem se of
the bill.

Number 1179

GREG O CLARAY, Conmi ssioner, Departnment of Labor & Wbrkforce
Devel opnent, stated that the CS is an inprovenent over the
original HB 155. The departnent supports Conceptual Anmendnent
1. He said he disagreed with M. Cattanach's suggested $50, 000
as a mninum size contract; he preferred using $25,000 for the
m ni mum si ze of contracts. He said he agreed with using the 1
percent to calculate the general contractor's fee because the
fee increases wth the size of the contract.

Number 1316

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 4, 2003



CHAI R ANDERSON sunmmarized Comm ssioner O Claray's response to

M. Cattanach's five points. 1) Conmi ssioner O Caray agreed
with filing certified payroll reports on the second and fourth
Fri days. 2) He preferred starting the fees wth $25,000

contracts and a 1 percent fee to calculate the contractor's fee.
3) He did not agree with deleting subsection 2(c) because it
gives the departnent teeth to enforce the prevailing wage |aw,
especially with a general contractor who is out of conpliance.
He said there should be a way for the departnent to address the
problem of a subcontractor who is out of conpliance so that
others would not be penalized. 4) He agreed that Section 4 can
be deleted because current law requires reporting, and the
effective date of the bill wll determ ne when the new fees are
col | ect ed.

MR. CATTANACH clarified his fifth point about electronic filing
and noted that it's already contained in the CS.

Nunber 1591

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked about holding a prinme contractor
responsi ble for a subcontractor filing on tine. He noted that
it's a set of teeth to keep the subcontractor in |ine.

COM SSI ONER O CLARAY said he agreed in concept but was trying
to avoid holding up a paynent to a prime contractor because a
bad subcontractor had "gone south.” He said he wants to be able
to hold up paynment to the subcontractor.

Nunmber 1688

MR. CATTANACH described a typical final pay request on a project
that mght have 15 subcontractors. This bill would hold up
paynment to the single subcontractor who hasn't filed the
affidavit of conpliance as well as paynents to the prine
contractor and the 14 other subcontractors. He suggested that
if contractors don't conply with the rules, disbar them and
don't allow themto bid on any nore projects until they conply.

He asked why one would penalize the contractors who play by the
rul es.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he'd support an anendnent to dea
with this issue.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said he whol eheartedly agreed with the
need to disbar people who violate the Little Davis-Bacon Act [AS

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 4, 2003



36. 05] . He said he has investigated several instances of
conpanies that do this repeatedly. But he said it's not clear
how to incorporate that issue into this bill

Nunmber 1782

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what happens if it is the contractor
who  goes sout h [t her eby holding up paynents to the
subcontractors].

COWM SSI ONER O CLARAY explained that is exactly the issue being
debat ed. The bill gives the departnent the authority to
wi thhold paynent in order to force conpliance with the newy
required reports. He said the bill gives the departnent enough
teeth to keep the contractor from going south. He said he'd
prefer to see CSHB 155 nove out of commttee, and perhaps the
di sadvantage to the subcontractor could be addressed by a future
comm ttee.

Nunber 1861

RON TRUI NI, Ironworkers Local 751, proposed several changes to
clarify payroll reports and enpl oyers.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD noted that M. Truini's concerns were
al ready covered in Conceptual Anmendnent 1.

Nunmber 1958

VINCE BELTRAM, IBEW [International Brotherhood of Electrical
Wor kers] Local 1547, asked for confirmation that the proposed
CSHB 155 will continue having the contractors send the certified
payroll reports directly to the Departnment of Labor & Wrkforce
Devel opnent. He also confirnmed that contractors can continue to
submt witten payroll reports after the July 1, 2004, deadline
when the departnent starts accepting electronic reports. He
expressed concern regarding whether this bill raised revenue
earmarked for the departnent. He asked the comm ssioner to
comment about whether these funds will prevent cuts to the Title
36 [wage enforcenent prograns].

Nunber 2052
COWMM SSI ONER O CLARAY responded that he could not guarantee that
the noney raised by CSHB 155 would flow to the Departnent of

Labor & Workforce Devel opnment. The user fees will be deposited
to the general fund. He said he hoped that these funds would

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 4, 2003



[ prevent] future <cuts to the enforcenent section of the
[ Division of Standards and Safety]. He said he will advocate
for retaining the funding for this program He responded to
anot her question from M. Beltram, saying that the House
Finance Standing Conmmittee w Il be making decisions about the
governor's proposed FY 04 budget. There's always the potentia
that Title [36] progranms could be inpacted, he said.

Nunber 2161

CHRI S TUCK, |BEW Local 1547, stated that his concerns have been
voi ced by previous speakers. He confirned that the |anguage for
contractors and subcontractors in the proposed CSHB 155 has been
anmended.

MR. TRU NI suggested on page 1, line 8, deleting "wages paid"
and inserting "payroll reports".

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted that the wording in question is
the current statute that has been in effect for quite a while.
He reiterated that all of M. Truini's concerns have been dealt
with in Conceptual Anendnent 1.

Nunmber 2267

CHUCK W EGERS, ABC [Associ ated Builders and Contractors] Al aska,
Fai rbanks, noted that his issues have been addressed. He did
note that wunder the current l|law, the departnent can ask the
attorney general to prosecute any contractor who is not paying
the prevailing wage; the teeth are still present in the |aw.

Nunber 2287

JOHN BROWN, Presi dent, [ Fai r banks] Central Labor Council
stressed that the departnent needs the funds necessary to nake
the prevailing wage | aw worKk. Enf orcenent activities have been
under f unded, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCORD responded that if these user fees were
designated as program receipts, the noney could be used for
enf or cenent . As the bill is witten, all this noney will go
directly into the general fund, so the [proposed CSHB 155] will
raise the cost of construction but won't really help the budget
of the departnent.

Nunber 2348

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 4, 2003



NANCY PETERSON, City of Valdez, expressed appreciation for the
changes in Section 1 of CSHB 155, keeping the certified payrol
reports flowing to the Departnent of Labor & W rkforce
Devel opnment. She noted concerns with Section 2, subsection (c),
wi t hhol ding of final paynent because it wll place a burden on
the local contracting agency that wll have to pay interest
while the departnent determnes whether all the requirenents
have been net.

TAPE 03-28, SIDE B
Number 2375

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked where Valdez will find the funds
to pay the fees that the contractor will pass on to the city.

M5. PETERSON said the fees being charged [and passed on to the
City of Valdez by the contractors] wll result in a smal
increase in the cost of the project. She said she was pleased
to see that the changes in the proposed CS require the
departnment to nonitor the certified payrolls [rather than
assigning the task to the contracting agencies].

Nunber 2284

DON ETHERI DGE, Lobbyist for Alaska State AFL-CIO [Anerican
Federation of Labor and Congress of Industrial Organizations],
said his group supports the changes in the proposed CSHB 155
especially with the certified payroll reports remaining with the
depart nent . He also urged a nethod directing the user fees to
t he departnent, which he acknow edged is a different battle.

CHAI R ANDERSON pondered the need for a second conceptua

anmendnent  which incorporates the commi ssioner's suggested
changes. These changes would be: Changing Section 1 to
reporting on the second and fourth Fridays for all payrol

i ncurred; changing Section 2, raising the mininmumcontract limt

from $5,000 to $50,000 [per M. Cattanach] or $25,000 as
reconmended by the comm ssioner; use a 1 percent figure to
calculate the fee above $50,000 instead of a sliding scale;
leaving in the notice elenent in Section 4, per the
conmi ssioner, or renoving it, per M. Cattanach.

Nunber 2181

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested clarifying the interim periods
between the second and fourth Friday deadlines of every nonth.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 4, 2003



He suggested deleting "two weeks" and inserting "the previous
reporting period" on page 1, line 12.

COMM SSI ONER O CLARAY agreed that "the previous reporting
period” is a good clarification.

Number 2099

CHAIR ANDERSON reviewed the possible changes for Conceptual
Amendnent 2.

weeks" and inserting "the previous reporting period" on page
line 12.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO reiterated his suggestion of deleting "two
1,

CHAI R ANDERSON confirmed that the second change [on page 2,
lines 19-28] would set the mninmm contract at $25,000, per the
conmmi ssioner's preference, and use the 1 percent calculation for
the fees instead of the stepped anounts. He confirnmed that the
commttee did not want to delete subsection 2(c) because the
comm ssi oner opposed this action.

Nunber 2007

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD said he hated that [the final paynent]
could be held up because of one bad actor, but the |aw needs
teeth to do the right thing.

CHAI R ANDERSON said he believes Section 4 of the CS needs to
remain in place and thinks it has been msread. |If not, he said
he's willing to work to change it before it goes to the House
finance committee.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked whether the Ilanguage "on a form
provided by" on page 2, line 1, refers to a paper form or an
el ectronic form He noted that the CS uses both "fornf and
"electronic filing".

Nunber 1933

PAULA SCAVERA, Special Assistant, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Labor & W rkforce Devel opnent, said that the word
"fornm, found in various state | aws, neans paper or el ectronic.

Nunber 1901

CHAI R ANDERSON summari zed Conceptual Anendnent 2 as foll ows:

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 4, 2003



1. Page 1, line 12 — After the word "previous", delete "two
weeks" and insert "reporting period".

2. In Section 2 adjust the mnimm contract price to $25, 000.
Additionally, the sliding scale needs to be renoved and
replaced wwth a flat 1 percent of the total contract price
for all qualifying jobs.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked for clarification on whether the

contract total refers to the sumtotal or only the anmount above
$25, 000.

CHAI R ANDERSON confirned the anount is the total contract.

Nunmber 1856

CHAI R ANDERSON noved to adopt Conceptual Anendnent 2. There
bei ng no objection, it was so ordered.

Nunmber 1836

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM [noved to adopt Anmendnent 3, 23-
GH1119\A 1, Craver, 3/19/03, with line nunbers on page 3 hand-
corrected to reflect Version D of HB 155] which read as foll ows:

Page 1, line 1, followng "relating to":
Insert "the definition of 'public construction'
for purposes of paying prevailing wages, and to"

Page 3, lines 1 - 3:
Delete all material and insert:
"Sec. 36.05.900. Definitions. 1In this chapter,
(1) “"contracting agency" neans the state or
a political subdivision of the state that has entered
into a public construction contact wwth a contractor;
(2) "public construction” does not include
rehabilitation, al teration, ext ensi on, or repair,
structural or otherw se, undertaken by tenants of a
building owned or controlled by the state for
gover nnent or public use after t he initial
construction or acquisition of the building by the
state, notw thstanding AS 36.95.010."

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM explained that she was presenting
Representati ve Rokeberg's anendnent because he was not able to
attend today's neeting. She referred to his acconpanying cover
meno in each nenber's bill packet.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 4, 2003



Number 1753

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD obj ected to Amendnent 3. He stated that
this would be a huge change in [AS 36.05, Wges and Hours of
Labor] and would not have the general agreenent of the various
parties who worked on the CS. He said it's a huge change to
renove rehabilitation, alternations, extensions, or repairs [of
buildings] from the Little Davis-Bacon Act. No one has
contenplated this kind of a change in the law, he said. He
explained that he has worked on a rehabilitation of a public
buil ding that was worth many m | lions of dollars.

COWM SSI ONER O CLARAY acknow edged that Anmendnent 3 woul d have a
maj or negative inpact on the prevailing wage rate |aw
[ Renovations of buildings] account for about 50 percent of
construction projects, he said. The departnment could not
support this anmendnent, and it would be a deal breaker on the
CsS.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG stated that adopting this [anmendnent]

woul d meke the legislation a different bill. It is an entirely
new concept with an entirely new constituency that would want to
testify. [ This anendnment] goes to the core issues of the
prevailing wage |aw, he said. It would be a disservice to this
bill and the work acconplished by the various players to open
the bill up to a [change] this large and w de.

Nunber 1570

A roll call vote was taken. No Representatives voted in favor
of proposed Anendnment 3. Representati ves Cuttenberg, Crawford,
Dahl st rom Gatto, Lynn, and Anderson voted against it.
Therefore, Amendnent 3 failed by a vote of 0-6.

CHAI R ANDERSON cl osed testinony and debate on the bill.

Nunber 1560

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report CSHB 155, Version 23-
GH1119\D, Craver, 4/3/03, as anended, out of conmttee wth
i ndi vidual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, CSHB 155(L&C) was reported from the
House Labor and Conmmerce Standing Committee.

HB 162- | NCREASE BUSI NESS LI CENSE FEE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 4, 2003



Nunber 1529

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the final order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 162, "An Act increasing the fee for a state
busi ness |icense; and providing for an effective date."

CHAI R ANDERSON rem nded the conmittee that at the March 12,
2003, hearing HB 162 was anended to tier the fee costs as
fol |l ows:

0-5 enpl oyees - $50 per year
6- 25 enpl oyees - $100 per year
26- pl us enpl oyees - $200 per year

CHAIR ANDERSON noted that commttee nenbers should have a
spreadsheet in which the groupings [of enployees] were slightly

revised as follows: 0-4, 5-19, and 20-plus. The spreadsheet
illustrates what the governor's legislation will yield with the
vari ous changes in fees. He asked menbers to review the chart

and decide whether there should be another anendnment to the
l egislation in order to increase the anount or whether this
tiered approach is sufficient.

Number 1379

RI CK URI ON, Director, Division of CQccupational Li censi ng,
Depar t ment of Community & Economc Devel opnent ( DCED)
acknowl edged that [the design of the bill] is the legislature's
deci si on. However, he remarked that it would be best to keep
the [fee systen] sinple. M. Uion highlighted that this
| egislation does bring in a lot of revenue and nost business
owners don't m nd paying that fee.

Number 1350

DON JOHNSON, Fishing Charter Operator, informed the committee
that he has a charter operation on the Kenai River and that in

the 1980s there were no fees. M. Johnson pointed out that he
is now paying between $3,000-$5,000 to put his boat in the
wat er . This ongoing disregard of the public's wllingness to

pay fees is a mstake, he said. This [increase] in the business
license fee is a generic tax on the state's residents who want
to do business, and it discourages business. All these fees get
passed on to the consuner. M. Johnson said, in the end, this
[increase] will really hurt the fisheries industry.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Johnson what he viewed as a
reasonabl e fee for a business license for a year.

MR. JOHNSON clarified that he works in a fishing and hunting

gui de busi ness. He noted that this industry has experienced a
tremendous increase in fees, and every tinme [there is an
increase or a new fee] the comment is nmade, "No one will mnd."

He informed the conmittee that currently he has to take out a
| oan to pay all the fees before [starting his season]. Although
he understands trying to fill in the fiscal gap with a user fee,
he indicated that the fee structure would underm ne the fishing
industry. A lot of businesses have nore than four, five, or ten

enpl oyees, and those businesses will get hamered on this, he
war ned.

Number 1155

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed out that 20 years ago, when there
were no fees, 2 mllion barrels of oil were produced on the
pi peline. However, today there are just about 1 mllion barrels
of oil produced. This reduction in revenue is part of the

reason for this increase as is the desire to control the anount
of use on the rivers, which indirectly helps those involved in
comercial hunting and fishing.

MR. JOHNSON reiterated that he thought generating revenue wth a
user fee is good, but he stressed the person wanting to access
the |ake or river should be charged rather than the
busi nessper son.

CHAI R ANDERSON turned to a chart provided by commttee staff.
He explained that the first section lays out [the inconme for HB
162, as proposed by the governor], with detail for each category

of enployees targeted by [the commttee]. The second section
desplays the three tiers of incone under HB 162, as anended by
the commttee, and it illustrates a decrease in total incone.
The third section reflects the increase in incone if the
business license [fee for small enployers] was increased [to
$75] per year. The fourth section reflects the incone if the
business license [fee for the small enployers] was increased to
$100 per year; it noves the [revenue] closer to the governor's
annual target of $7 mllion.

Nunber 0970

JOSH APPLEBEE, Staff to Representative Tom Anderson, House Labor
and Commerce Standing Committee, Alaska State Legislature,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 4, 2003



informed the commttee that if the 20-plus category of enployees
was charged $500 for a business license and the 0-4 category of
enpl oyees was charged $75, there would be new revenue in the
amount of $4, 244, 900.

CHAI R ANDERSON hi ghlighted the need for a bal anced approach so
that small conpanies aren't [favored] while [large] businesses
continue to pay their share. He enphasized that the committee
nmust devel op a reasonable fee that al so generates revenue.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD pointed out that [when a conpany pays
for] a business license, it obtains a nane that no one el se can
use, which is worthwhile and for which [there should be a fee].
He said he disagrees with the governor's |egislation, which
charges a $200 fee regardless of the size of the business. He
said he favors a nodest change in the business fee.

Nunmber 0862

CHAI R ANDERSON proposed the foll ow ng:

0-4 enpl oyees - $75
5-19 enpl oyees - $100
20- pl us enpl oyees - $200

He inquired as to how nuch nore revenue would be generated by
changing the 0-4 enployees category to $75, as specified above.
He noted that the current legislation before the comittee
[exanpl e two on the spreadsheet] yields $2,133, 675.

MR. APPLEBEE inforned the commttee that the above change woul d
result in total annual revenue of $3.611 [million].

CHAI R ANDERSON expl ained that [this fee structure] would provide
another $1.5 mllion and would [reach] half of the governor's
target.

Number 0772

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD poi nted out that there are nmany seasona
jobs that have great fluctuations in the nunbers of enployees.
When the fee is based on the nunber of enpl oyees, Representative
Crawford said he believes those businesses that tenporarily hire
| arger nunbers of enployees will be hurt the worst.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE CGATTO asked if there is a breakdown that
addresses sole proprietorships [separately] wth the next
category being 2-5 enpl oyees.

Number 0660

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG agreed that there are lots of sole
proprietorships. He also concurred wth Representative
Crawford' s warni ng about the inpact on seasonal busi nesses.

MR. URION said that although the division has the nunber of sole
proprietors, sole proprietors can have enployees. Wth regard
to determ ning the nunber of enployees, M. Urion specified that
those enployers who file a quarterly report with the Departnent
of Labor would be charged a fee on the basis of the nunber of
enpl oyees [specified in the quarterly report]. Ther ef or e,
seasonal [businesses] will have to pay a fee at the high end
[ based on the nunber of enployees during their busiest season].

Number 0504

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD posed a situation in which an enployee
works for a single contractor [on and off] numerous tines
[during the year]. He asked if that enployee would be counted
once or each tinme the person was rehired.

CHAI R ANDERSON pointed out that a contractor wouldn't obtain a
business |license for each job but rather for the year
Therefore, he assuned that the contractor's maxi mum nunber of
enpl oyees for one year would be [the nunber considered] when
purchasi ng the business |icense the next year.

MR URION, in response to Representative Crawford, explained
that an enployee would [only be counted once], no natter the
nunber of tinmes the enployee worked for the enployer in a year.

Nunmber 0398

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN infornmed the conmttee that he is a [real
estate] broker associate for a |large conpany in Anchorage. The
conpany enploys probably 100 agents who are independent
contractors. He asked what would happen if the broker of the
| arge conpany had his business |icense based on his nunber of
enpl oyees and each of the independent contractors had their own
| i cense.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 4, 2003



MR URION assuned that a real estate [broker] would have a
busi ness |icense.

Nunmber 0318

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN said that he didn't have a business |icense
and he didn't believe anyone [in his position] did either.
Representative Lynn explained that all his conm ssions cone
through the broker, although he is an independent contractor
rat her than an enpl oyee.

MR URION related his belief that an independent contractor had
to have a business |icense. Furthernore, one can't be an
i ndependent contractor and an enpl oyee, the individual is one or
t he ot her.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN requested that M. Urion check on that.

CHAI R ANDERSON infornmed the commttee that he has provided M.
Appl ebee with various scenarios to plug into his spreadsheet.
Chair Anderson proposed a hypothetical scenario in which an
enmpl oyer of 0-4 enployees paid $75, 5-19 enployees paid $150,
and 20-plus enployees paid $300. Chair Anderson reiterated the
need for balance, but nentioned that every other state has a
hi gher business |license fee than Al aska. He expressed the need
to devel op a nunber that brings in additional revenue to pay for
the program and [ease] the budget deficit.

Nunber 0113

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if 20 enployees is the highest
nunber that is tracked. He remarked that it would seem
appropriate to increase the fee for enployers with 50 or nore
enpl oyees.

CHAI R ANDERSON said that's sonething to consider
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO nentioned a $25 fee plus $10 per enpl oyee.

TAPE 03-29, SIDE A
Number 0077

MR URION indicated that 90 percent of the businesses [in
Al aska] have 0-4 enployees. The businesses on the high end [of
enpl oyees] are so few that it would nmake little difference in
[total revenue if fees for those few businesses were higher].

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 4, 2003



Nunber 0142

CHAI R ANDERSON gave the conmittee aide another set of figures to
enter into his conputer spreadsheet: $75 for 0-4 enployees,
$150 for 5-19 enployees, and $200 for 20-plus enployees. He
noted that it would total $3,866,575, which is $1.7 mllion nore
than the current anended version of the bill, assumng no
"dropouts” - people who refuse to pay the fee. Chai r Anderson
referred to the spreadsheet in commttee packets that shows the
anounts under HB 162 as currently anended, in addition to other
scenarios including the governor's proposal under which everyone
woul d pay $200. He explained that he'd like the total to be at

least $3.5 million, half the revenue requested by the governor
in the original bill. He sought menbers' input.
Number 0219

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG suggested seeing how nuch would be
generated if the fee were $500 for 20-plus enployees under that
scenari o.

CHAI R ANDERSON nentioned seasonal businesses and so forth,
noting that it is quite a junp fromthe current $25.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG wi t hdrew hi s suggesti on.

CHAI R ANDERSON said there was nerit in that thought process

However, as M. Urion had said, 90 percent of Al askan busi nesses
have the smaller nunber of enployees, and the higher anopunt
would apply to so few [businesses] that it wouldn't increase
revenue mnuch.

Number 0323

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM expressed concern that $3 million isn't
what the governor asked for and that he'll rmake [budget]
adj ustnments el sewhere without the |egislature's input.

CHAI R ANDERSON asked M. Uion whether he believes the $3.8
[mMIlion] would be nore acceptable than the $2.1 million.

MR. URION said every [increase in revenue] is appreciated.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM reiterated her concern [ about
addi ti onal budget cuts].

Number 0431

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 4, 2003



CHAIR ANDERSON said [this bill] remnded him of the [sharp
increase] in the alcohol tax |ast year. He suggested the need
to [increase revenues] in "baby steps” out of fairness.

Nunber 0440

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWCRD nmentioned the 300 percent increase
originally proposed for the alcohol tax. He pointed out that
the governor's proposal [for the business license] would be an
800 percent increase.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM highlighted M. Uion's testinony that
this is the first increase in 50 years. She said it will affect
her personally too.

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD pointed out that it won't affect
[legislators] nearly as nuch as it wll affect people who aren't
[as well-off financially].

Number 0508

CHAI R ANDERSON returned attention to his recomendation of $75,
$150, and $200. He explained that the biggest increase would be
for businesses with nore than 20 enpl oyees. They would pay $175
nore a year, whereas businesses with 0-4 enployees would pay
only $50 nore. Acknow edgi ng Representative Dahlstromis point,
he added, "W're trying to work with the governor to cut costs
and generate revenue."

Nunmber 0557

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO suggested that $200 was too close [to the
$75 and $150 fees]. He proposed $250 or even $300, indicating
it should account for the major difference in the nunber of
enpl oyees.

CHAI R ANDERSON i ndi cated he was asking the commttee aide to run
a scenario for $75 and $150, and inquired about $250. He
expressed dislike for $300, saying he wouldn't support such an
anendnent .

MR. APPLEBEE said [increasing the fee for |arge enployers]
changes the revenue to $4, 022, 675.

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noted that it is a $400, 000 i ncrease.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 4, 2003



CHAI R ANDERSON said he believes a $275 increase a year [for a
$300 fee for large enployers] is too nuch and thus he woul dn't
support it because sone seasonal conpanies have 4 or 5 enployees
in the winter but 20-plus in the sumrer. He referred to
Representative (Quttenberg's remarks and pointed out that
[ ExxonMobi |  Corporation], for exanple, 1is in that 20-plus
cat egory. He suggested perhaps the House Finance Committee
could look at [setting a fee for the |arge enpl oyers] further.

Nunmber 0643

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN rai sed the possibility of a graduated system
that changes to a percentage of the gross or net revenue after a
certain point.

MR. URION surm sed that NFIB [National Federation of |ndependent
Busi ness] woul d object and that nany businesses wouldn't want to
have to "disclose that to that degree.”

CHAIR ANDERSON agreed it is a good idea to look at ways to
capitalize on the larger conpanies wthout meking the snaller
conpani es incur debilitating fees. He asked whether anyone had
an anendnment to raise the fees at sone level in order to get
closer to the governor's requested revenue. He rem nded nenbers
that an anmendnent was adopted at the March 12 neeting that woul d
bring in $2, 133, 675.

Number 0760

CHAI R ANDERSON noved to adopt a conceptual anmendnent such that
$75 would be the fee for 0-4 enployees a year, $150 would be the
fee for 5-19 enployees a year, and $200 would be retained for
20-plus enployees a year; that would yield $3,866,575 if there
were no "dropouts,” and would raise revenue over the anended
bill by another $1, 700, 000. He said he'd like to raise it a
little closer to the anpbunt desired by the governor.

Number 0840

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG obj ect ed. He said the commttee aide
had done a good job, but he recalled asking for a |Ilarger
spreadsheet to show sonme different nunbers at the previous
nmeeting. He suggested it would have hel ped to have had nultiple

scenarios "already built in to sonething.” He expressed concern
about the disproportionate burden on [conpanies with] 0-4 and
15-19 enployees conpared wth [large oil conpanies |ike
ExxonMobi|  Corporation, for exanple]. He also nentioned

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 4, 2003



[ conpanies with] seasonal enployees and the need to build those
concerns into [the commttee's solution]. He said he didn't
think there was a sinplistic answer.

CHAI R ANDERSON agr eed.
Number 0919

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM reiterated that this wll affect her
and several nenbers of her famly, but expressed confidence that
the governor will cone up with the $7 mllion. She said she'd
rat her know exactly where it wll come from rather than be
surprised | ater

Number 0961

REPRESENTATI VE  CRAWORD acknow edged that it isn't "fun
busi ness” to close a budget gap. He referred to Representative
GQuttenberg's comments and said this [anmendnent] doesn't address
a lot of concerns. For exanple, a sole proprietor or a business
with one enmployee could earn $1 mllion a year, whereas a
conpany with 100 enpl oyees in a year could do only a few hundred
t housand dollars in business. He pointed out that there will be
mllions of dollars nore to [raise] in future years.
Representative Crawford suggested the need for a broad-based
plan that addresses the whole problem with a phased approach
over a nunber of vyears. He said he wll wait for a good,
honest -t 0o- goodness fiscal plan.

CHAI R ANDERSON agreed and said he is wearing "two hats.” One
[of his concerns] is that there is a budget deficit that nust be
addressed i mmedi ately. Noting that this is one targeted area
[in which to raise revenues], he said businesses should pay a
little nore "business tax," but asked what "a little bit nore"
shoul d be. He said he was pleased that the commttee passed an
anendnent to reduce what the governor proposed, but he now finds
hinmself in a quandary comng back to the commttee and asking
for an anmendnent that would generate revenue closer to what the
governor targeted. He said that he doesn't hear anyone else
recommendi ng this approach and said that if nobody supports this
anendnent, he will withdraw it and pass on the bill as amended
previ ously. He acknow eged Representative QCuttenberg' s point
about how the nunbers were arrived at, but surmsed that
"everybody has an idea on what the categories could be."

Nunber 1118

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 4, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN commented that no conbination of nunbers
woul d please everyone and that there is no perfect answer.
Mentioning a desire to provide the revenue sought by the
governor, he said it doesn't seem feasible when [the majority of
the businesses] are nom and-pop [operations]. Noting that he
does phot ography on the side and has gladly paid $50 [for a two-
year |license] to show his photographs at a Saturday market, he
said he m ght not have been so eager to do that "hobby business”
if he'd had to pay $75, $150, or $200 [a year]. He adnmitteded
that the burden falls on those businesses [with 0-4 enpl oyees]
because there are nore of them He expressed reluctance about
doing that, however, and said it is too bad the commttee cannot
find a way to match [the business |icense fee] to the incone [of
the particular business]. He pointed out that everyone turns in
a tax return, but acknow edged that it is confidential.

Nunber 1201

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered that sole proprietors are smart
people and wll [adapt]; for exanple, they nay conbine wth
others and obtain one license for the amalganated business.
"You're going to wind up with less noney than you think," he
predicted, indicating the nunbers proposed by Chair Anderson
wer e accept abl e. He conpared Al aska favorably with California,
which is $35 billion in the hole and already has a sales tax and
i nconme tax.

Nunber 1254

CHAI R ANDERSON withdrew his amendnent. He explained that he
bel i eves businesses under the current anended bill would be

payi ng enough. He suggested revisiting [business |license fees]
in the future if the departnent indicates that the state isn't
"i nmposi ng enough business tax to operate.” He suggested that
the commttee nenbers concur wth the witnesses |ike M. Johnson
who say that businesses, with this hike, are paying enough. He
requested a notion to nove the bill fromconmttee, stating that
the nessage from the conmittee wll be: "This is all we want
businesses to pay at this stage, and it can be revisited by
anot her | egislature at another date.”

Number 1299
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noved to report HB 162, as amended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB 162(L&C) was
reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing Committee.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 4, 2003



ADJ OQURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:20 p. m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 4, 2003



